1957

## In Re: Dwight L. King : Brief of Petitioner

Utah Supreme Court

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

DWIGHT L. KING, a member of the Bar of this Court, has petitioned for a review by this court of the proceedings had in the above entitled matter, seeking to have annuled and rejected the recommendation of the Board of Commissioners of the Utah State Bar entered on the 4th day of February, 1957, wherein the Board recommended to the Supreme Court, "that an order be entered suspending Mr. Dwight L. King from the practice of law in this state for a period of six months and

until he is recommended for reinstatement by the Board of Commissioners of the Utah State Bar upon application duly filed and submitted by said court.”

The proceedings were originally initiated upon the written complaint of one John M. Sherman, an attorney licensed to practice in California. Mr. Sherman, under date of August 6, 1954, wrote to the Utah State Bar Commission stating that he wanted to file “a formal complaint against a member of the Bar of the State of Utah, Dwight L. King, associated with the firm of Rawlings, Roberts, Wallace and Black of Salt Lake City.” (R. 3) Mr. Sherman alleged:

“ . . . The basis of the complaint against Dwight L. King is clearly indicated by the Court records and matters contained in the transcript of the proceedings which show beyond any reasonable doubt that Mr. King had personal knowledge that certain documents introduced into evidence were prepared in his office on the morning of June 10th, 1954. Mr. King, through his client, Harold J. Schnitzer, produced them, they were admitted into evidence on that day with the testimony that they had been prepared in Portland, Oregon more than a year prior to June of 1954. This matter was testified to by both Harold J. Schnitzer and Walter E. Hutchinson and at that time Mr. King himself well knew that the documents were not prepared in Portland, Oregon but were, in fact, prepared in his office and by his secretary.

The record and transcript clearly show that Mr. King was in the hotel room in the Hotel Utah occupied by Harold J. Schnitzer on the morning of June 10th, 1954, between the hours of 8:30 and 9:00 o'clock a.m., that he left the hotel room in company with Mr. Hutchinson and Mr. Schnitzer

to return to his own law office for the purposes of preparing the above mentioned documents.

This conduct on the part of Mr. King is a definite breach of the Code of Ethics of any bar association and the acts committed by Mr. King in permitting perjured testimony to be given to the Court and false information given to the Court, together with overt and open acts on his part in assisting with and participating in these acts are clearly such acts that warrant appropriate disciplinary action by your Commission.” (R. 4)

Following receipt of this communication, the Utah State Bar Commission appointed a committee to investigate the matter. This committee held an informal hearing on November 4, 1954, “for the purpose of taking a voluntary statement from Dwight L. King, who is here in company with Wayne L. Black.” (Exh. T 3, p. 1) Mr. King, who was not represented by counsel and Mr. Wayne L. Black, a fellow member of the Bar, made voluntary statements before the committee which statements were stenographically reported and transcribed and appear in the record before this Court as Exhibit T 3.

Subsequently, on March 7, 1955, the investigating committee through its chairman, Mark K. Boyle, made a report to Mr. Lee M. Cummings, Secretary of the Utah State Bar, in which the committee summarized its activities as follows:

“Mr. Sherman alleges generally that Mr. King had personal knowledge of the fact that certain documents had been prepared and executed in his office on June 10, 1954, and that with such knowledge he caused them to be introduced into evidence

purporting to be documents which had been prepared many months prior in Portland, Oregon.

“Mr. King’s version is that he was aware that some documents were being prepared in his office on the morning of June 10th, but that he paid little attention to the subject matter thereof and that he was taken by surprise when his witnesses testified that they had been prepared and executed at a different time and place.

“The Committee feels that this explanation is not entirely satisfactory and that Mr. King’s conduct during the examination of the witnesses indicates that he was not taken by surprise. However, according to his own statement he conferred with his witnesses during the noon recess and supposedly chastized them for misrepresenting the facts, but he nevertheless remained silent during the rest of the day when the misrepresentation continued.

“It is the recommendation of the Committee that appropriate disciplinary action be taken by the Board of Commissioners.”

Sometime later, (the record does not disclose the date thereof), a formal complaint, No. F-39 was filed and a citation issued to Mr. King directing him to appear within 10 days after the service of the citation upon him to defend the allegations of the complaint. (R. 8) The complaint alleged that Mr. King was guilty of unprofessional conduct as follows:

“Knowingly permitting witnesses to fabricate evidence and testify falsely before the District Court of Davis County.” (R. 9)

The citation was served upon Mr. King by mail on the 3rd day of October, 1955. (R. 11) A motion for a

more definite statement was filed requesting the hearing committee to require the prosecution more specifically to set forth the nature of the charges of unprofessional conduct. Particularly, with reference to the phrase, "knowingly permitted" the motion asserted that Mr. King could not determine whether he was being charged with having committed overt acts or with merely acquiescing in the acts of others. Likewise, in being charged with "permitting witnesses to fabricate evidence" it was also urged that the accused could not determine whether the evidence claimed to have been fabricated related to documentary evidence or whether it related to the fabrication of oral testimony. (R. 13)

The motion for more definite statement was overruled without hearing and Mr. King thereupon through his counsel filed an Answer denying the allegations of the complaint in respect to any unprofessional conduct.

The matter was finally brought to trial on the 5th day of May, 1956, at Provo, Utah, at which time counsel for the prosecution posed the question if it were determined that Mr. King did not actually fabricate evidence or permit anyone to testify falsely, "What was Mr. King's duty under the Rules of Ethics of the Utah State Bar in regard to a matter presented to the court which he knew to be false?" (R. 47)

As its evidence in support of the charges made, the prosecution offered "The full transcript of the record in the matter involving Locke vs. the Harsh Utah Corporation, and Mr. Schnitzer." (R. 64) In objecting to the introduction of the full transcript of testimony counsel for Mr. King stated that he had just overheard



opposing counsel state that after the entire record had been introduced in evidence they would move to amend the complaint to conform to the proof in that it would be further claimed and alleged that Mr. King was guilty of professional misconduct in failing to advise the court that perjury had been committed. (R. 70)

Thus, for the first time a charge was made that Mr. King "had a duty to confer with his clients and then divulge to the court the facts, the truth, respecting the evidence concerning which false testimony had been made." (R. 72) After considerable discussion on this matter, counsel for the prosecution were allowed to amend their complaint by adding thereto the charge "Knowingly refraining from divulging to the court the truth concerning such evidence presented to it." (R. 85-88) This amendment to the complaint was objected to by counsel for Mr. King who sought to have the Hearing Committee proceed with the hearing at that time upon the charge made in the original complaint. (R. 89) However, not only was the amendment accepted but the hearing was continued to a future date.

The matter came on again for hearing on June 11, 1956, at which time Mr. John M. Sherman appeared at counsel table with the attorneys for the prosecution. When asked by Mr. King's counsel as to the nature of Mr. Sherman's appearance at the hearing, Mr. Thomas replied:

"He is here as a witness. He has been subpoenaed as a witness, but he has been very helpful in the association by way of advice in an advisory capacity in this matter, but he does not appear

here as co-counsel. He merely appears as a witness." (R. 113)

The hearing before the committee was concluded on the same day, the only persons appearing to testify in the matter being Mr. Sherman, Mr. King, and Mr. Wayne L. Black. The committee received Exhibits T 1 through T 6; and the deposition of Harold J. Schnitzer, a witness for the accused Mr. King, was published.

Following the hearing, the matter was argued by counsel for the respective parties on August 6, 1956, and thereafter on a date which does not appear from the record but which was approximately November 1, 1956, the hearing committee submitted its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law in which it found in part as follows:

"3. That during the course of said trial, and particularly on June 10, 1954, in Davis County, Utah, one Harold J. Schnitzer, one of the defendants, represented by said Dwight L. King, and Walter E. Hutchison, Secretary of the defendant, Harsh Utah, a Corporation, knowingly, while under oath, testified falsely before the Court as to dates and place upon and at which a resolution and waiver of notice of directors of Harsh Utah, a Corporation, had been prepared and signed by the President and Secretary, respectively, of said Corporation.

"4. That at the time the testimony was given by the said Harold J. Schnitzer, and Walter E. Hutchison, to wit: on June 10, 1954, as aforesaid, the said Dwight L. King, one of counsel for Harold J. Schnitzer, and Harsh Utah, a Corporation, knew that such testimony was false.

“5. That the said Dwight L. King did not disclose to the Court or to other counsel, true facts as to the place and dates of the execution of such waiver of notice of directors, and resolution of Harsh Utah, a Corporation, until June 21, 1954, at a time when said defendants began their case in chief in such trial, although such Dwight L. King, as counsel, had opportunity to do so.

“6. That the resolution of Harsh Utah, a Corporation, and the waiver of notice of directors of Harsh Utah, a Corporation, were prepared by Walter E. Hutchison in the office of Dwight L. King, on the morning of June 10, 1954, and signed by the said Harold J. Schnitzer, and Walter E. Hutchison on that date.”

Based upon the foregoing Findings, the Disciplinary Committee determined as a Conclusion of Law that “The said Dwight L. King violated the provisions of Rule III, Sec. 32, Sub-Paragraphs 15 and 41 of the revised rules of the Utah State Bar governing professional conduct and discipline.” (R. 281)

Thereafter, the Board of Commissioners of the Utah State Bar, on February 1, 1957, made its recommendation that Mr. King be suspended from the practice of law in this state for a period of six (6) months, (apparently adopting the Findings and Conclusions made by the Hearing Committee). (R. 282)

## STATEMENT OF POINTS

In his Petitioner for Review, Dwight L. King set forth his reasons for urging that the recommendation and proposed order of the Board of Bar Commissioners are without merit and should not be approved. As broken

down and segregated into points, they appear as follows :

1. The evidence is insufficient to support the implied findings that Petitioner did not make a disclosure of the facts of the false testimony to the court within a reasonable time. Under all the facts and circumstances of the case, including the pressure being exerted upon Petitioner by the nature of the trial, the tactics and conduct of opposing counsel, and the professional desire on the part of Petitioner "to maintain inviolate the confidence" and "preserve the secrets of his client," Petitioner acted with propriety and in keeping with the ethical standards of the profession.

2. Neither the evidence nor the findings justify the conclusion that Petitioner violated the provisions of Rule III, Sec. 32, Sub-Paragraphs 15 and 41, Revised Rules of the Utah State Bar governing professional conduct and discipline.

3. The evidence does not justify the recommendation of the Board of Bar Commissioners that Petitioner be suspended from the practice of law for a period of six (6) months.

The foregoing points will be analyzed and discussed in this brief under the following headings :

## I.

### **PETITIONER DID NOT UNREASONABLY DELAY REPORTING THE FALSE TESTIMONY TO THE COURT.**

## II.

PETITIONER'S CONDUCT DID NOT VIOLATE SUB-PARAGRAPHS 15 OR 41 OF SECTION 32, RULE III, REVISED RULES OF THE UTAH STATE BAR GOVERNING PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT AND DISCIPLINE.

## III.

UNDER ALL THE FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS CASE PETITIONER SHOULD NOT BE SUSPENDED FROM THE PRACTICE OF LAW.

## ARGUMENT

### I.

PETITIONER DID NOT UNREASONABLY DELAY REPORTING THE FALSE TESTIMONY TO THE COURT.

Although the amended complaint charged Petitioner with knowingly permitting witnesses to fabricate evidence and testify falsely, as well as "knowingly refraining from divulging the truth to the court or parties concerning such evidence and testimony," the Hearing Committee failed to find against Petitioner on the first ground of the charge. The only finding of any alleged misconduct appears in Finding No. 5 to the effect that Dwight L. King failed to disclose to the court or to other counsel the true facts with respect to the execution of the waiver of notice and the resolution of the directors until the 21st day of June, 1954, when he had opportunity to do so. This finding was not disturbed by the Board of Bar Commissioners and therefore must be deemed to have been

approved. Likewise, since the Board of Commissioners failed to make any further findings or conclusions, it must be taken as accepted that the Board exonerated Dwight L. King of any other alleged misconduct.

Petitioner's position at the hearing was, and now is, that if he had a duty to disclose the facts to court and counsel he did so within a reasonable time under all the facts and circumstances of the case. In order to have a full and complete picture of such circumstances, it is necessary to give a description of the transactions and occurrences surrounding the incident complained of. In doing this, we must not only refer to the testimony before the Hearing Committee, but also to the testimony in the original case, entitled *Pacific States Cast Iron Pipe Company, et al. vs. Harsh Utah Corporation and Harold J. Schnitzer*. This Court is undoubtedly well aware of the record in that case since the decision of the trial court in Davis County was appealed to this Court. The decision rendered on appeal is reported in 5 Utah 2d 244, 300 P. 2d 610. However, since some of the facts which we feel are pertinent here may have been obscure or lost in the voluminous record before the court we will attempt to summarize the facts briefly.

The particular matter with which we are concerned involved the claim of Alvin T. Locke, an intervening Plaintiff, against the Harsh Utah Corporation and Harold J. Schnitzer. The actual hearing of Locke's case began on Tuesday, June the 8th, 1954. (R. 133) Prior thereto, Mr. Sherman, Locke's attorney, obtained information concerning the room in which Mr. Schnitzer would be registered at the Hotel Utah. On the Sunday before

the 8th, Mr. Sherman obtained a key to the room which would be later assigned to Mr. Schnitzer and took a Mr. Don H. Terry to the room. Mr. Terry then wired the room for the purpose of eavesdropping on all conversations which might take place therein and for the purpose of recording such conversations. A microphone was placed over the window of the room, and a wire led from the microphone to a suite of connecting rooms down the hall and around the corner occupied by Mr. Terry and Mr. Sherman. (R. 142, 143, 161) During the ensuing days of the trial many, if not all, of the conversations taking place in Mr. Schnitzer's rooms were monitored and overheard by Mr. Terry, and tape recordings of some parts of these conversations were made.

The first person called by Mr. Sherman to be examined, was the Defendant, Harold J. Schnitzer, President of Harsh Utah Corporation. Mr. Schnitzer took the stand on the afternoon of Tuesday, June 8th, and was interrogated by Mr. Sherman the balance of that day and all day of the 9th. (R. 130, 134) During this examination, reference was made to the minute book of the Harsh Utah Corporation. Mr. Schnitzer testified that this minute book was in the possession of the secretary of the corporation, a Mr. Walter Hutchinson of Portland, Oregon. When Mr. Sherman continued to press his examination concerning the corporate minute book, Mr. Schnitzer advised Mr. Sherman that Mr. Hutchinson was coming to Salt Lake City and that he would be requested to bring the minute book with him and that Mr. Schnitzer would produce it in court. (R. 148)

Mr. Hutchinson arrived in Salt Lake City on the evening of June 9, 1954, and came to the hotel room occupied by Mr. Schnitzer. There was some conversation about the minute book which Mr. Hutchinson had brought with him. It was decided that it would be advisable to discuss the testimony which Mr. Hutchinson, (an expert on federal housing matters) was going to give in court while he was in Utah with Dr. Dwight King before court the next day. Mr. King was called on the phone, invited to meet with the others the following morning for breakfast. This conversation and other discussion between the parties, including some telephone conversations, were overheard and recorded by Mr. Terry in his room down the hall. At the hearing before the Committee, Petitioner produced these tape recordings and requested the Committee to hear as much of the monitored conversations as it desired. A portion of the recording relating to the morning of June 10, 1954, was played several times. (R. 193-198)

The following morning, Mr. King met Mr. Schnitzer and Mr. Hutchinson and had breakfast with them at the hotel, after which he came to the hotel room. During the course of the discussion, reference was made to typing certain minutes which belonged in the corporate minute book. According to the undisputed testimony of Mr. King, he was requested to allow Mr. Hutchinson, who was an attorney as well as secretary of Harsh Utah Corporation, use of a stenographer for the purpose of having the minutes typed and put into the minute book. Mr. King understood that the minutes had been prepared but were not in final form and therefore required typing.



The conversation in the hotel room between Mr. King and Mr. Hutchinson, related to the testimony Mr. Hutchinson was to give on the federal housing matters. (R. 250) The parties finally left to go to Mr. King's office where the minutes were to be typed up. The uncontradicted testimony is that upon the arrival at Mr. King's office, Mr. King allowed Mr. Hutchinson the use of his office and secretary for the purpose of having the minutes typed up. Mr. King further testified that Mr. Hutchinson had in his possession and appeared to be dictating from documents and papers which he, Mr. King, assumed were the minutes which were being typed and prepared in final form. (R. 253, 254) Because of the delay involved in the typing of the minutes, it was necessary to call the court and request a postponement of the starting time that morning. (R. 252) When the people arrived at the courthouse, Mr. Sherman again put Mr. Schnitzer on the stand and began to examine him relative to the corporate minute book, which at that time was produced and handed to Mr. Sherman. Keeping in mind, that Mr. Terry had already monitored the conversation regarding the parties going to Mr. King's office where the minutes were to be typed up, Mr. Sherman proceeded to cross-examine Mr. Schnitzer regarding the minute book and, by leading and suggestive questions invited Mr. Schnitzer to testify that the minutes had been prepared and signed approximately a year before in Portland, Oregon. Finally, Mr. Schnitzer broke down and stated that the minutes had actually been signed by him that morning. Thereupon, Mr. Sherman proceeded to go into the matter of the waiver of the notice of the meeting (which had also been prepared that

morning), and finally obtained a statement from Mr. Schnitzer that the waiver of the meeting had actually been prepared and signed at the time the meeting was held a year before.

In the present hearing, Sherman testified he could observe from the appearance of the two documents that they had been prepared on the same typewriter and similar in appearance. (R. 178, 179) He also testified in response to a question by a member of the Hearing Committee:

“MR. COLTON: Mr. Sherman, which of these days did you find out this testimony was perjured?

“WITNESS: I first found it out on the 10th of June.

“MR. COLTON: Is that why you were examining the witness Mr. Schnitzer?

“WITNESS: Mr. Schnitzer and Mr. Hutchison on the tenth of June, yes.”

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