1957

## In Re: Dwight L. King : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

## I.

THE EVIDENCE IS SUFFICIENT TO SUPPORT THE FINDINGS OF THE DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE TO THE EFFECT THAT PETITIONER DID NOT MAKE A DISCLOSURE OF THE FALSE TESTIMONY WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME FROM THE DATE OF SUCH FALSE TESTIMONY.

Petitioner says that his position at the hearing of this case was, and now is, that if he had a duty to disclose the facts to the court and counsel he did so within a reasonable time under all the facts and circumstances of the case (Petitioner's Brief, p. 11).

The testimony of petitioner shows that he concluded on June 10th, during the lunch hour of that day, which was the day the perjury was committed, that the record should be corrected and set right. He said:

"A. We concluded that the record should be corrected during the lunch hour, before we even got out of Wild Horse Charlie's, and that is what I told Mr. Hutchinson to do. I told him to correct that record and I told Mr. Schnitzer to do it too.

“Q. That was the 10th, wasn’t it?

“A. That was the day it occurred and there wasn’t any ifs, ands or buts about that, and there wasn’t any equivocation on the instructions. But they didn’t correct the record that afternoon and that night we began to thresh around and try to resolve the problems we were confronted with” (R. pp. 0270-0271).

Petitioner’s counsel stated:

“When the opportunity came to present his case they corrected it” (R. 0063).

And the following appears to be pertinent:

“MR. COLTON: Is it your position that if the evidence is immaterial then it isn’t the responsibility of counsel to disclose that even though it be immaterial?

“MR. NIELSON: We take that position but we don’t think we have to go that far. We say in any event Mr. King had that problem in his mind and he concluded he couldn’t tell from what the authorities said as to his duty as to whether it was to his client’s advantage psychologically to disclose it all and he did it at the most reasonable opportunity when he thought he could gain some advantage from it and not have it pulled out piecemeal by someone on the opposition to make a big show about it” (R. 0195).

Also, Harold J. Schnitzer, petitioner’s client, advised Mr. Hutchinson at the lunch hour on June 10th to tell the truth and honestly answer the questions regarding the preparation and signing of the two documents in question (the

Waiver and the Minutes containing the resolution). (Schnitzer's Deposition, pp. 13, 15 and 16.)

If petitioner had sincerely desired to correct the record and reveal the truth concerning said perjured testimony, he had ample opportunity to do so prior to June 21st, the date that his witnesses Schnitzer and Hutchinson testified as to the falsity of their previous testimony given on June 10th. The record reveals that the perjury was committed by Schnitzer on the morning of June 10th (Exhibit P-1, pp. 2 to 13, incl.), and was committed by the witness Hutchinson on the afternoon of said day, June 10th (Exhibit P-1, pp. 14 to 23, incl.). Petitioner called the said witness Mr. Hutchinson to testify on the next day, June 11th, and examined him on said date on direct, redirect and further redirect examination (R. 0136). The 12th and 13th days of June, the year being 1954, were Saturday and Sunday (R. 0135). On Monday, June 14th, the witnesses Miller and Ellis, the latter being an employee of defendants Schnitzer and Harsh Utah Corporation, and witness Goldberg were called and examined by counsel opposing petitioner and were cross examined by petitioner and petitioner then called and examined out of turn witness Isaacson (R. 0136 and R. 0139). On Tuesday, June 15th the aforesaid witness Ellis was called and examined by opposing counsel and cross examined by petitioner; later the aforesaid witness Goldberg was recalled and examined, then cross examined by petitioner. On Wednesday, June 16th, witnesses Ellis and Weber were again called and examined by opposing counsel and petitioner cross examined witness Weber; plaintiff Locke was then called and examined by opposing counsel

and was cross examined by petitioner (R. 0137). On Thursday, June 17th, witness Shipler, a photographer, and witness Goddard, a typewriting identity expert, were called by opposing counsel to identify the aforesaid Waiver and Minutes (R. 0138), both of whom were cross examined by petitioner (R. 0139); defendant Schnitzer was then, said date being June 17th, called and examined by opposing counsel (R. 0139). On Friday, June 18th, defendant Schnitzer again took the witness stand and was examined further by opposing counsel, cross examined, and recross examined, by petitioner; then said witness Ellis was cross examined and recross examined by petitioner. In the afternoon on this day, June 18th, opposing counsel called and examined Mr. Don H. Terry, the police officer from the City of Pasadena, who testified regarding the installation by him of sound equipment in room 904, Hotel Utah, later occupied by defendant Schnitzer and others and his listening to and recording of conversations which took place in said room. Petitioner cross examined this witness (R. 0139-0140). June 19th and 20th, 1954, were Saturday and Sunday. On Monday, June 21st, petitioner cross examined and recross examined and further recross examined plaintiff Locke, a portion of which had to do with the recordings testified to by the aforesaid witness Terry (R. 0140). Then it was that on the afternoon of June 21st petitioner examined the said witnesses Schnitzer and Hutchinson, who then testified under oath as to the falsity of their previous testimony given on June 10th concerning the preparation and signing of the said Waiver and Minutes containing the resolution (Exhibit P-1, pp. 151-153 and 154-166 incl.).

## I-A.

PETITIONER WAS NOT JUSTIFIED IN REFRAINING FROM DIVULGING THE TRUTH REGARDING PERJURED TESTIMONY IN ORDER "TO MAINTAIN INVIO L A T E THE CONFIDENCE" AND "PRESERVE THE SECRETS OF HIS CLIENT" BECAUSE:

(a) PETITIONER'S CLIENT HAD WAIVED THE PRIVILEGE PROHIBITING DISCLOSURE OF COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN ATTORNEY AND CLIENT.

The said deposition of petitioner's client, Schnitzer, (R. 0276) reveals that following the false testimony of Mr. Schnitzer at the noon recess on June 10th there was a conversation concerning the said false testimony between petitioner, Mr. Wayne Black, Mr. Hutchinson, Secretary of Harsh Utah Corporation, and Mr. Schnitzer at which they discussed the examination of Mr. Sherman concerning the preparation and signing of the aforesaid Waiver and Minutes, and petitioner then told Mr. Hutchinson that if he were questioned on the matter of these two documents he should not feel embarrassed about the fact that he had not prepared the minutes before coming to Salt Lake and to admit very honestly that he had neglected to do so and that he should very honestly answer the questions that Mr. Sherman gave without being ashamed of the fact that the minutes had not been prepared before. Mr. Schnitzer further

testified that he himself told Mr. Hutchinson that "Mr. King's advice was proper and that there was nothing wrong in having failed to do something of that nature, since no one was hurt and it had no bearing on the case" (Schnitzer Deposition, pp. 13, 15 and 16).

Also, petitioner says that they had concluded that the record should be corrected during the lunch hour even before they got out of Wild Horse Charlie's, which was on the 10th of June, the day the perjury had been committed (R. 0270).

Notwithstanding advice given to Mr. Hutchinson by petitioner and by Mr. Schnitzer, petitioner's client, to tell the whole truth on the afternoon of June 10th, this witness testified falsely concerning the preparation and signing of the said Waiver and Minutes thus corroborating the false testimony which Mr. Schnitzer previously gave that morning.

From the foregoing, it would appear to be clear that at this juncture of the case (afternoon of June 10th) petitioner's client, Mr. Schnitzer, had authorized that the whole truth concerning the preparation and signing of the said Waiver and Minutes should be divulged to the court and thus had waived any prohibition regarding the disclosure of the communications between him as client and petitioner as attorney.

At 58 *Am. Jur.*, pages 292-293, appears the following statement regarding communications between attorney and client, which appears to be the law on the said subject:

**"WITNESSES:** The right to prohibit disclosure of communication between attorney and client

belongs to the client and not to the attorney. The privilege may be waived and the waiver may be either express or implied by the conduct of those entitled to its benefits."

(b) PETITIONER'S FIRST DUTY  
WAS TO COURT AND NOT TO CLIENT.

In the light of the announced present position of petitioner to the effect that he disclosed to the court the facts on which perjured testimony had been previously given within a reasonable time under all facts and circumstances of the case, it would appear that petitioner does not now seriously contend that his primary duty was to keep the confidences of his client and refrain from divulging the same to the court.

It is well settled that the fidelity which a lawyer owes to his client must not be allowed to override the duty which devolves upon an attorney to deal honorably with the court of which he is an officer, and to inform it on the law and the facts of a case in which he appears; in *Thornton on Attorneys at Law*, Vol. 2, p. 1235, Sec. 822, this duty on the part of a lawyer is recited and this authority further states that the lawyer violates his oath of office when he resorts to deception *or permits his client to do so.* (Italics added.) This authority further says:

"An attorney is never justified in continuing a case after he has knowledge of the fact that it is being supported by perjured testimony; and if he proceeds with the trial thereafter, without acquainting the court of the fact that the testimony is false, and seeks to recover judgment on such testimony, his misconduct merits his disbarment."

We further call attention to the following provisions of Revised Rules of the Utah State Bar governing professional conduct and discipline which are pertinent, in addition to Rule III, Sec. 32, sub-paragraphs 15 and 41, upon which the said Disciplinary Committee relied, to-wit:

## “RULE II

“Conduct Prescribed by Statute.

Section 21. “It is the duty of an attorney and counselor:

“4. To employ, for the purpose of maintaining the causes confided to him, such means only as are consistent with truth, and never to seek to mislead the judges by any artifice or false statement of fact or law;” *Title 78-51-31, Utah Code Annotated 1953, Treble Damages.*

Section 22. “An attorney or counselor shall not:

“5. Take part in deceit or collusion, or consent thereto with intent to deceive a court or judge or a party to an action or proceeding.” *Title 78-51-26, (4), Utah Code Annotated 1953.*

## “RULE III

“Conduct Prescribed by Rule.

Section 32. “The following Rules comprising the Canons of Ethics of the American Bar Association, together with such interpretations thereof as may be promulgated by the Board of Commissioners of the Utah State Bar with the approval of the Supreme Court, were promulgated and prescribed for the conduct of the members of the Utah State Bar:

“\* \* \*

“29. Upholding the Honor of the Profession.

“\* \* \* The counsel upon the trial of a cause in which perjury has been committed owe it to the profession and to the public to bring the matter to the knowledge of the prosecuting authorities.”

I-B.

THE EVIDENCE DISCLOSES THAT PETITIONER DELIBERATELY REFRAINED FROM DIVULGING THE TRUTH TO THE COURT IN THE TRIAL OF CASE NO. 5096, DISTRICT COURT OF DAVIS COUNTY, CONCERNING PERJURED TESTIMONY GIVEN BY HAROLD J. SCHNITZER, ONE OF DEFENDANTS IN SAID CASE, AND WALTER E. HUTCHINSON, SECRETARY OF HARSH UTAH CORPORATION, ON JUNE 10, 1954, UNTIL EVIDENCE OF THE FALSITY OF SUCH TESTIMONY WAS PRESENTED TO THE COURT BY OPPOSING PARTIES.

Contrary to the aforesaid contentions of petitioner, the record reveals clearly that petitioner deliberately refrained from divulging the truth regarding the aforesaid perjured testimony until virtually forced to do so by the evidence submitted by his opposing counsel through the aforesaid witnesses Shipley, Goddard and Terry. In this regard attention is directed to Exhibit P-3, which is the transcript of the hearing before the Utah State Bar Investigating Committee of the Third Division, consisting of five lawyers in said Division, held December 4, 1954. At this hearing peti-

tioner made a voluntary statement under oath he being "interested in having the Committee here, hear what I have to say and at the earliest date possible" (Exhibit P-3, page 6).

After petitioner had explained in some detail what he considered to be the facts pertaining to the preparation and signing of the aforesaid Waiver of Notice and Minutes of Special Meeting of Directors of Harsh Utah Corporation and the false testimony submitted to the court by his client, Mr. Schnitzer, and by the witness, Mr. Hutchinson, Secretary of the Harsh Utah Corporation, the following answers were made by petitioner to the following questions submitted by members of the said Committee:

"MR. BOYLE: What was your feeling right after you had told Hutchinson, in no uncertain terms, you wanted him to tell the truth about this matter, and then in the afternoon session he completely disregarded your instructions? Did you have any feeling then you should inform the Court, or withdraw, or call a recess, or do anything of that kind?

"MR. KING: I did not feel any responsibility for him. As I say, he is an attorney. I did not offer his testimony, and I disavowed it, and when we started our other case, the first two witnesses we put on,—Mr. Hutchinson and Mr. Schnitzer—and of course here the problem occurred. Some people said, 'We think that an attorney, when he was disgusted, should have gotten up and said, 'Wait a minute now, that is false'".

"Maybe I should have. I did not think about doing that at the time, either with Hutchinson or Schnitzer. I do not believe if I was examining, I would permit them to tell a lie, I knew was a lie,

and not make them correct it, while under my examination.

“MR. BOYLE: You feel there is a substantial difference then in the fact Sherman was examining rather than you examining?”

“MR. KING: I do not think I had that feeling at that time. I—that is an after-thought. In other words, at that time I did not have this thing even thought out in my own mind, but, the question occurs to me, as I look back over it, I do not know whether I should have, on Schnitzer, said, ‘Wait a minute now, you are either going to tell the truth or I am withdrawing as your counsel’, or, ‘That is false and perjured testimony you are giving there.’ Maybe I had a duty as an attorney to confess to the Court a crime which he was committing in the presence of the Court. Maybe I had that duty, as far Mr. Hutchinson was concerned. I don’t know, Mark. I was not Mr. Hutchinson’s counsel, I did not in any way represent him at that time. I was Mr. Schnitzer’s counsel, and the attorney-client relationship being such as it is, I did not believe, and I do not believe now, that I would have the superior duty to the Court or the superior duty to Mr. Schnitzer.

“In other words, even though I knew, in the presence of the Court, he was committing a crime, if it was a crime, if perjury—even if I knew he was—I doubt as counsel, as long as I remain in this position, that I would have the superior duty to the Court. I think my duty to him is to protect his interest and keep his conduct and conversation and disclosure to me confidential at all times—is superior to my duty as an officer of the Court.

“I base that on what Judge Murray said up here when we had one of these Bar Associations. He said, ‘Well we all say a lawyer is an officer of the

Court, but he is primarily, and his first duty as an advocate and as counsel is for his client.'

"Now so far as Mr. Schnitzer is concerned, that is my feeling about it, and I do not believe that I would have been justified in disavowing, or saying to the Court, 'Now wait a minute, Mr. Schnitzer, you are telling a lie under oath' and I don't know, Mr. Hutchinson is a little different than it is with Mr. Schnitzer, but with Hutchinson, he is an attorney.

"MR. DRAPER: Didn't you, in fact, represent the corporation of which Mr. Schnitzer was President and Hutchinson was secretary?

"MR. KING: Yes, I did, but I don't know—does that make me represent Hutchinson?

"MR. DRAPER: I do not know.

"MR. BOYLE: This is not the place, probably, to argue the case. I would like to make this observation, and see what you think of it. It seems to me, under your explanation, that you feel your duty to your client, is superior to your duty to the Court under these circumstances. Doesn't that, in effect, do away with any question of having your witness or client give perjured testimony, if that duty overrides the duty to have him tell the truth, or see the truth is told; then under those circumstances, there would be no objection to ever giving perjured testimony through your own client? Certainly, that is not the situation we practice under.

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